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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The Directors present their stratcgic report on TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited ("TIH 2 or the
“Company™) for the year ended 31 December 2021,

Business Review
The Company is a whotly owned subsidiary of Nuveen Real Ustate Global LLC, a limited liability company
mncorporated in the United States of America,

TIH 2 was incorporated in the United Kingdom on 19 September 2013 by Teachers Insurance and Annuity
Association (“TIAA"), the ultimate controlling party of the Company as at the Statement of Financial Position
date, to act as 2 holding cempany for TIAA’s investment in Nuveen Investment Management Holdings Limited
(“NIMHL™Y, formally Nuveen Real Estate Limited. a dedicaled real estale investment munagement business.

On 9 March 2021 the Group acquired 99%q of the issued share capital of Clean Energy Partners Holdco LLP and
its afliliated entities thereof {collectively, "Glennmont™) to increase its clean enerpy infrastructure platform.
TIAA International Holdings | Limiled, another group entity acquired the additional 19« holding of Glennmont
and the non-controlling interest will be remeasured at each reporting period.

The Group made an imitial cash payment of £72,899,000 (€84,879,000) and additional fined and variable
deterred carn ouwt consideration’s totalling £31,953,000 (€37,300,000). These deferred considerations meet the
definition of consideration for the business and are payable in threc years il revenuc releution and growth targets
are achicved. The earn oul consideration is currently estimated o be €26,900,000, contingent on [uture fund
perfonmance. The Mxed deferred consideration is valued a €10,733,000 o~ a1 31 December 2021,

At the time of the acquisition the Group agreed 10 make these future payments o the partners ol Glenmmont
contingenl on their cotinuing enployment and future fund performance, payabic in 3 ycars. Deferred payments
linked o the continuing employment ol the sellers will be recognised through the Consolidaied Statemenl of
Profit or Loss over the peried ol the earn out,

Threughourt this report. reference is made to the “Group™ which refers to T111 2 and its subsidiary eompanies.

The Group’s consolidated revenue is primarily derived from fnvestnent management activities from the
underlying subsidiaries in addition 1o the asset management of infrastructure (ollowing the acquisition of
Glennmont and its aftiliates.

Al 31 December 2021 the Group's Assets Under Management ("AUM™) was £27.9bn (2020 £27.8bn).

During the year the Company terminated the secrelarial services of Cornhili Secretaries Limited and trans(erred
to Nuveen Corporate Scerctartal Services Limited

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group bas a risk managemeat framework in place 1o ensure that it meets ils objectives within acceptable
risk parameters. This {framework is reviewed regularly se that new and emerging rishs are identilied early on.
The Group’s culture cmbeds the management of risk at alf levels within the organisation The framework under
which it operittes also ensures that (he business is capable of mecting its busincss objectives within its risk
appetitc and 1$ subject lo continuous review. The main risks the Group laces are market risk, hquidity risk,
foreign exchange risk and credit risk, which are discussed further in note 4 to the financial statements. The risk
of COVID-19 has continued 1o impact all of the principal risks above facing our business.
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TIAA lnternational Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Repaort for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Response to the COVID-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 virus has had a profound effect on societies, economies and markets across the world, and there
remains uncertainty about i1s future impact. The Group’s priorities during this period have been 1o ensure the
health and safety of its employees and to continue to focus on delivering value for its stakeholders. While this
crisis is unprecedented in recent memery, the Group's business model and culture have meant that it has
responded effectively to the challenges and maintained its operational, investment and support activities as closc
tn nommal as possible.

Operational impact

Although the nature and impact of the COVID-t9 pandemic was not predicied, the Group’s Business Continuity
Plan was deployved swifily and delivered an effective response in the contest of the rapid development of
government guidance, pelicies and legislation in cach of the countries in which the Group operates, Over a
two-week period in mid-March 2020, the Group successfully transitioned from {ull-time office-based roles to
working remotely. This was elliciendly carried outl due to the Group's global operating model and robust IT
infrastructure, as well as the commitment and dedication of all employees at a time of significunt uncertainy.
The integrity of the Group's remete access environment enables effective management of cyber security risks in
the remote working period which has continued throughout 2021.

Some working practices were changed early in the crisis, such as ne face-to-face meetings and a restriction en
travel, and while at the time of writing they remain in place it is expected that they will ultimately prove
temporary, Nonetheless, the increased use of “virtual” communications since the start of 2020 is likely (o have a
fasting, tmpact on behaviour across the industry.

In line with jocal goverminent guidelines, certain offices have begun to return 10 office-based operations, with
strict social distancing rules in place. However, the Group's post COVID-19 approach will inclede a hyvbrid
working palicy.

Communications

The worldwide impact of the pandemic on working praciices meant that the Group had 1o employ alternative
ways of communicating with stakeholders. The Group has a significant increase in the use of video calling
systems to enable emplovees o maintain contact with members of their teams and other coileagues. frequent
and regular Senior Leadership Team emails and Zoowm meetings 1o all employees, ongoing regular contact v ith
the Group's regulators, as well as communicating with stakeholders early in the ¢risis to provide a
comprchensive update and reassurance on the Group™s response to the develaping situation.

Conclusion

With the COVID-19 crisis evolving and the developrents in vaccinations. the Group remains in close contact
with local hcaith authorities, governmental agencies and other key stakeholders in all geographies. so that the
Group can react and adapt to any changes in crcumstances and mintmise the risk to the Group's customers,
employees and otier stakeholders, There are a number of ongoing business reviews 1o evaluate different courses
of action in response to the crisis.

Looking ahcad. the Group will review the fesvon~ learned during this crisis as part of {uture updates to the risk
management framework. specilically when it come- to the Group's approach taken to prepare for similar types
of events.

Russia-Ukraine war

The Russian invasion of Ukraine has created significant unceriainly in the global (inancial markets and
ceonomies, The duration and extent of this uncertainty and the related impact over the long-term cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time While not currently expected to be material, Nuveen will continue to monitor
the impact on the Company’s business. results of operations, investments, and cash flows.
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FTIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Directors' duties

The Directors of the Group must act in accordance with a predefined set of duties, as per 5.172 of the UK
Companies Act 2006. A director of a Company should act in gooad faith, which in turn, is most likely 1o promole
the success of the Company and benefit its stakeholders. The Dircctors' report on page 5 cxplains in detail how
the Directors fulfil their duties.

The Director must have repard to:

= The likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

* The interests of the Company’s employees;

= The need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, custemers and others;

* The impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment;

* The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and;
* The need o act fairly as between members of the Company.

Key Performance Indicators
The Group uses the following key performance indicators (KPls) lo assist in the understanding of the
development, perlormance and position of the business:

iy Assets Under Management

Buring 2021, the Group continued Lo undertahe the asset management for cerluin real estute investments of the
affiliates ol the Compamy located it f-urope and Asia. AUM increased in the year duc o the acquisition of
Glennmont i the assel management of infrastruture,

AL 31 December 2021 AUM 1y £27.9hn versus a Plan of £29.1bn (2020 £27 8bn versus a Pl ol £2%.ibn). 1he
unfavourable variance 15 driven by adverse loreign currency movements and fower market activity.

i) Cash Plow from Operations

The Group monitors aperating cash flows s a key element in understanding the performance and position of the
business Mannpement expects to continue Lo have positive cash flow from operations over the next 12 months,

ity Operating Margin

The Group expects to see a gradual improvement in its operating margin in the long term Since incorporation
the margin has been increasing and is seen as a key metric for the Group.

Approved by the Board of Direclors on 13 Apr:l 2022 and signed on its behalf by -

DocuSmgned by

Duncan. Morton.

BBYASHATSIDEACO
D D. Morlon

Lireclor
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Directors’ Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The Directors present their report and the audited Group and Company financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 which have been prepared under and comply with UK-adopted international accounting
standards.

Please refer to the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 4 for the activities and future developments of the Company
and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties. For financial risk management refer to note 4

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company. The Group has overseas branches in Spain,
ltaly, Luxembourg, Germany, Denmark, Sweden and the Netherlands.

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of real estate and infrastructure asset management services,
market research and portfolio management advice,

Results and Dividends
The profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to £4,544,000 (2020: £656,000). The Dircetors do
not recommend the payment of a dividend (2020: £nil}.

Financial instruments
The Group and Company financial risk management objectives and policies. including exposures to risks are
discussed in Capital resources and risk management, note 4 of these financial stalements.

Directors
The Direclors, who held office during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of signing the
financial statements were as (olows:

. D. Moron
w1 L Sales
Q. Salanu

Directors' third party indemnity provisions

Nuveen Investment Management Holdings Limited ("NIMIEL™) on behall of the Company has made qualifying
third party indemmity provisions within the meaning given o the term by 5.234 of the Companies Act 2006 for
the benefit of the respective directors which were in place throughout the year and which remain in place ot the
date of the approval of these financial stateruents,

NIMHAL may indemnify the Directors o the extent permitted by United Kingdom faw. NIMEL may indemnify
the Directors against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred in the actual or purported

excention andfur disclinrge o his dugies. or i relition 10 them,

NIMHL may provide the Directors with lunds to mect expenditure incuried or to be incurred by him in
connection with any proceedings or application referied above.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

BDirectors’ Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Directors’ duties

The Directors of the Group most act in accordance with a predefined set of duties, as per s 172 of the UK
Companies Act 2006. A director of a Company should act in good faith, which in tum, is most likely to promote
the success of the Company and benefit its stakeholders.

The Director must have regard 1o:

* The likely consequences of any decishon o the long term;

* The interests of the Company’s employees:

« The need 1o foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others:

« The impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment;

« The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and;
* The need to act fairly as between members of the Company,

The following paragraphs summarise how the Directors” fulfll their dutics:

Employees

Ihe Group is committed to ils employees ensuring it attracts, retains and develops its people. The Group
promotes a collaborative and inclusive work cnvironment that encourages diversity, growth and development
and rewards individual and tcam achicvemenis 1 hese attributes are embedded in the employee’s values which
helps guide behaviour and achieve strategic goals. Applicants with disabililies are given equal consideration in
our application process, and disabled colleagues have equipment and working practices modified for them as far
as possible and where it is safe to do so

Community and the Environment

The Group ensures it acls sustainably by mtegrating environmental social and corporale goals. There are key
personinel dedicated 1o sastwinabilily who ensuare (he busiress is well placed to pursue growth opportunilies,
whilst minimismg the risk of acceleried depreciation and early obsolescence within the Group’s asset portioho.
The sustainability team also educate the wider Group ernployees and dircctors 1o guarantee the enviromment is a
the forefrant of decision making.

Page 6
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TI1AA International Holdings 2 Limited

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECRY) disclosure 2021

Impact area Units of Sustainability Performance Measures Absolute
measurement measures
202}
Energy kWwh 3.1 Elcctricity for bandlord shared services 416 618
(sub)imetered exclusively 1 fengnty
Tutal consumption procured Iy 436 638
T1AA International Holdings 2
A2 District for landlord shared services
thermals (sub)imetered exclusively 1o tenanis
Total consumption procured by
) TIAA International Holdings 2
33 Fuels for landlord shared services 121099
(subjretered enclusiely 1o {enants
Tatal consumption procured by 121,099
TIAA Internatipnal Heldings 2
Nrofl applicable properties Energy and associated GHG 3
tlisclosure coverage -
°o Proportion al energy and 38%
. I nssociated GHE estimated
Greenhousc pas tonnes COz¢ 35 Diregt Seope 1 24
emissions e i 36 Indirect Seupe 2 93
o L Total Scapes 1 + 2 fonly) 117
Renewable Encrgy kWh Energy Total landierd-ohtained 0
reacviable cnergy
Noof applicable propertics Renenablic encrgy disclesure i
Caverage
Intensity metrics
[ - o Intensity
o ML UFes
Impact arca {inits of measurcment Suntainabiiiy Performunce Measures Hlice
2021
Enerpy LW kel Time Emplavees Encrgs Bulding energy infensify IR
year : X
i
Greenhouse fas KuClhe Tali Tune Greenhouse gas Greeshouse gas infeosty 30224
emissiens Liipioyess vem eI issiens
Tl Tante Euployees U nerey and assectamed GHG 364

Jdesclusure conorave

Number ol applicatie propeines

Lierey and asseciatzd GHE
Jisclasure con sragg

Data qualifying notes

RN Jpu—

This environmental performance suminary covers 01 01 21 - 31 12721 and focuses on TIAA
international Holdings 2's UK corporate activities. This includes the energy consumption for which
TIAA International Holdings 2 is responstble under the SECR guidelines,

The calculations in this report have been carried out in accordance with the GHG Protocol and the
carbon footprint combines Scope 1 and 2 emissions. Data has been collected from the entity via utility
bills and mileage expense claims. Estimations have been carried out based on data received in the
same period 1n the previous year where necessary. Data was collected in kWh where possible,
Mileage data was collected as pass, miles travelled, and then converted into kWh using DEFRA
published conversicon factors.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) disclosure 2021

The absolute values represent total energy and carbon arising from the activities under TIAA
International Holdings 2 direct control in the buildings that it operates.

Assets: Electricity consumption from the London office location (201 Bishopsgate), Edinburgh office
and One Angel Court (Glenmont office} is included in this report. Gas consumption has been included
for Edinburgh and One Angel Court. Mileage data has been collected for all expense claims to the
entity, for travel within the UK, or starting/ending in the UK, including expenses which are ultimately
recharged to other entities.

Intensity values: Energy and carbon intensities have been calculated using only combined Scope |
and 2 emissions (kgCO2¢) and have been normalised by the number of Full Time Emplayees at each
office,

Emissions factors; Carbon emission factors from DEFRA 2021 have been used to produce this report.
Energy Efficiency Initiatives
2021

Air Conditioning (Temperature Control): During periods of near zero occupancy the temperature in
the main office has been contiolled to a much wider dead band. This resuits in lower heating demand
in cold weather and lower chilling demand in wanin weather. It is very difficult to measure the exact
savings therefore the figure is an approximation, A

Whole Year Saving: 18,500 kWh

Air Conditioning: High efTiciency low friction bearings have been installed to all FCU's. FCU’s have
high running hours so small energy saving can amount to significant savings.

Whole Year Saving: 18,720 KWh

ZIP Taps: Zip taps store hot and cold water and therefore use energy even when not in use. Nuveen
Zip taps have been shutdown during WFH periods to conserve energy.

Whole Year Saving: 360 kWh
2020

Lighting: Reduce lighting levels during periods of low or zero occupaiion. During COVID-19 the
office has often been totally unoccupied. Engineers have been checking to ensure lighting is at
minimum levels,

Whote Year Saving: 19.938 kWh

Atr Conditioning: The low office use has naturally resulted in reduced air conditioning energy usage
However, air circulation has also been reduced when safe to do so.

Whole Year Saving: 48,600 k'Wh

Low Use Equipment: Equipment that has been infrequently used has been shut down to conserve
encrgy. The equipment, for cxample AV equipment and rack, has been set to off and only restarted
when required.

Whole Year Saving: 1,296 kWh

Page 8
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) disclosure 2021

UPS Systems: The Nuveen area IT load is powered by a 3 module UPS. This UPS has been reduced
10 2 module operation for the majority of 2020. This results in a direct energy saving and a resultant
saving in air conditioning load in the UPS$ room.

Whole Year Saving: 10,368 kWh

Verification statement for SECR

Verco Advisory Services (Verco) hereby confirm that the energy consumption reported for SECR has
been verified through a trend and variance analysis. There has been regular correspondence with the
data collectors to review the accuracy of the data. The verification has been done in line with the
foliowing standards:

- 150 14064-3
- 80 500062
- 180 19011

The verification checks are delivered by Verco, a specialist sustainability consultancy, on the
sustainability disclosures related to TIAA International Holdings 2 UK operations.

Mark Challis

Operations Director

Verco Advisory Services
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited
Directors’ Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Clients

The Direclors ensure they have open dialogue with clients atlowing the communication to be effective and
efficient. Clients are expecting increased transparency in the levels of information which the Company fulfils to
ensure a range of products are available for investor's needs.

Ultimate Parent

TUT 2 is part of a wider group, therefore not nnly do the Dirccters have o act in good faith for the Company but
also lhe wider group, All of TIH 2's Directors ensure that they promote the success of the whole group and
educate Directors across the whole organisation.

Risk Management

The risk management, compliance and legal teams are esvential elements to the business. These teams are
pariners to the investment, product and distribution tecams™ safepuarding decisions. The Group maintains a
three-lines-of-defence model ensuring best practice:

«  First line: Employees in the investment, preduct and distribution teams have a duty 1o supervise and follow
rigorous internal compliance guidelines,

= Sccond line: Risk Management and Compliance teamns with guidance from Legal, assisting i identifying
and mitigating risks; and

+  Third linc: Imernal audit function which provides infornation on the adeguacy and clicclivencss of the risk
margement Process.

Going concern

Given (he significant impact of COVID-1Y on the macre-cconamic conditons in which the Group is operating.
the Dircetors have placed a particutar focus on the appropriaieness of adopting the gomg concern basis in
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 | he Group’s going concern assessment
considers the Group’s principal 1ishs (see note 4) and is dependent on a number of tactors, including financial
performance.

Based on the abhove, together with available market information and the Directors’ knowledge and experience of
the Group’s business and markets, the Dircctors continue to adopt ihe going concern basis in preparing the
annual! lnancial stalements [or the year ended 37 December 2021,

Events after the reporting period

No cvents oceurred afler the Statement of { inaicial Position date that have a material impact on the financial
staterments. The Directors bave not received any further infarmation as al the approval date which has not been
reflected in the financial sttements presented.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

‘Ihe Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and consolidated financial stalements in
accordance with applicable law and regulation,

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group and the Company financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards.

Linder company law, Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and {air view of the state of aftairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+  stale whether apphcable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subject 1o any
material departures disclosed and explained ie the financial stalements,

+  make judgements and accounting estimates thal are reasonahle and prudent; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for sufeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and bence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

ihe Directors are also responsible for keeping adequale accounting records that are sufficient to show and
cxplain the Group and Company's lransactions and disclose with recasonable accuracy at any time the fmancial
position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial stalements comply with the
Companies Act 2006

Directors' Confirmations
In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:

+ 5o far as the Dircctor is aware, there s no relevant auwdit information of which the Group's and Company’s
auditors are unaware; and

- they have taken all the steps that they eught to have 1aken as a Director in order o make themselves avware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s and Company's auditors are aware of that
information.

Independent Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhvuseCoopers LLP, will be proposed for re-appointment in accordance with Section
483 of the Companics Act 2006. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicaled their willingness to continug in
office.

The Financial Statemeantts on pages 16 1o 69 were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 April 2022 and
signed on its behalf by:

Doculigned by

Dwnzan, Merton,

BAPBSAAOSRDA4CH
Er 1k Morton

DHreclor
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of TIAA International
Holdings 2 Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited's greup financial statements and company financial statements (the
“financial statements™):

= give a true and fair view of tha slate of the group’'s and of the company's affairs as al 3% December 2021 and of the
group’s profit, the company's profit and the group's and company's cash flows for the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted intemmationa! accounting standards; and

+ bhave been prepared in accordance with the requirements of lhe Cempanies Act 2006

We have audited lhe financial slatements included within the Annual Report and Consoldated Financial Statements (the
“Annuai Repont’}, which comprise the Consolidated and Company Stalemenris of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021,
the Consohdated Statement ol Profit or Loss. the Consolidaled and Company Statements of Comprehensive Income. Lhe
Goansaolidated and Company Statements of Changes 1 Equily and the Consolidated and Company Statements of Cash Flows
for the year then ended; and the noles to the financial stalements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducied aur audd in accordance with intermational Standards on Auditing (UK) ('1SAs (UK)") and applicable faw. QOur
respons bilities under 1SAs (UK} are further described i the Auditors” responsibilities for the audd of the financial statements
section of our report We beleve that the audd evidence we have obtamed s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
cur opinion

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance wilh the ethical requirerments that are relevant 1o our audit of the
financal statements m the UK which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfiled our ¢ther ethical
respanstilkties n accordance with these requirements

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have perdformed, we have not ident fied any mateniat uncerainties retating to events or conditions that,
individually or coliectively, may cast significant doubl on the group's and the company's ability to continue as a going concem
for a period of at least twelve months from when the financiat statemenis arg authorised for 1ssue.

In auditing the financial stalemenls, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparabion of the financial stalements is appropriate

However, because not alf future avents of conditions can be predicted, this conclus:on is nel a guarantee as to the group’s
and the company's abilily to continue as a going concern
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Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are descnbed in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other infermaltion comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
nat cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent clherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereen.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, In doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with lhe finantial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit. or otherwise appears 1o ba materially misstated. if we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstaternent, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If. based on the work we have performed, we conciude that
there is a malerial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing lo repor based
on these respensibilities.

With respect to the Sirategic report and Direclors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been includad.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audil, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to repart cerlain opinions
and matters as described below,

Strategic report and Directors’ Report

h our opinion, based on the work undertaker n the course of the audit. the information given in the Strategic repor and
Dirgctors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consisient with the financial statements and has bean prepared
in accordance with appiicable lega! requirements

In fight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did notidentify any materia! misstatements in the Strategic report and Direclors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained mere fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statemeants in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. The directors are also responsible for such mnternal contral as they delermine is necessary to enable the preparation of
finrancia! slatements that are free from materiat misstatement, whather due lo fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company's ability 1o
conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting uriless the directors sither intend to liguidate the group or the company of 10 cedse operations, or have no
sealistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur abjectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
missfatement, whether due to fraud or efror, and to 1ssue an auditors’ repor! that inctudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance. butis not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accerdance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect
a matenai misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise from fraud of error and are considered material if, individ ually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonatly be expected to influence the economic decisions of users laken on the basis of
these financiai statements.
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Irregularitres, including fraud. are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, cutlined above, te delect material misstatements in respect of imegularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting imegularifies, including fraud, is detailed below,

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal nsks of non-comphance with laws and
regulations related lo Companies Act 2006, and we considered the extent to which non.compliance might have a material
effect on the financial statemenis. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipuiation of
the financial slatements (including the risk of ovemide of controis), and determined that the principal risks were related to
manipulation of financial dala to present more favourable financial results. Audit procedures performed by the engagement
team included:

» Engurries with management and compliance., including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-comphance
with laws and regulations and fraud,

» Rewiewing relevant meeting minutes, incisding those of the Board,

= Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing ar extent of our testing;

» ldentifying and testing journal enfries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations, entries
posted containing unusual account descriplions, and entries posted with unusual amounds, and

» Obiaining management mformation and market data to validate and assess the inputs into the calculation of
management's impairment assessment over goodwill, intangibles. and investment in subsidiaries and challenging
assumplions made, where appropriate

There are inherent imitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less ikely to become aware of instances of
nen compliance wdh flaws and regulations that are not closely refated Lo events and transactions reflected in the financiai
statements Ailso, the nsk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is tugher than the nsk of nat detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, fargery or intentional misrepresentations,
or through coflusion

A further description of our responsibihties for the audd of the financial statements is located o the FRC's websde al.
www Ire arg uik/audsitarsresponsitilibes  This description forms part of sur auditors’ report

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Cornpanies Acl 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinians, accept or
assume responsibilily for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or mio whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2008 we are required io report to you if, in our opinion:

» we have nol obtained ali the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have nol been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« cerlam disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the company financial staterments are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no excephions to repor arising from this responsibility.
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Fhomas Norrie (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LI.P
Chartered Accountants and Stalutory Auditors
London

13 April 2022
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DocuSign Envelope D 4CDIET1B-54F5-47A2-931A-AB9SCIBDE49S

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note £ 000 £ 000
Revenue 5 105,166 92,902
Adminislrative expenses 6 (147,055) (116,978)
Other aperating income 10 50,798 28,055
Operating profit 8,909 3,979
tinance income I 3 31
Finance costs i? (744) (637)
Net finance cosl (74 (606)
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method 8 - {6)
Profil before tax 8.168 3,367
Income tax expense 13 (3,624) (2,741
P'rofit for the year _ 77454_51 636
Profit attributable to: ‘
Owners of the company 4,461 567
Non-controlling intercsts 83 89
454 656

The above results were derived from continwing operittions.

the above Consolidatled Statement of Profit or | 0ss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The noles on pages 26 1o 69 form an integral pan of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope |10 4CDIE?1B-54F 5-47A2-931A-ABSOCSBDE435

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December

2021

2621 2020

£000 £ 000
Profit for the year ' . 4,544 656
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (1,902) 1,005
Totat comprehensive incore for the year 2,642 1,661
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company 2,603 1,548
Non-controlling interests ’ 39 113

2,642 1,661

The notes on pages 26 to 69 form an inlegral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3ET71B-54F5-47A2-931A-AB99CIBDE4G5

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Company Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Revenue
Adminisirative expenscs

Operating profitf{loss)

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before tax

Profit/{loss) and total comprehensive income {expense) (or the

year

The above results were derived from continuing operations

The notes on pages 26 10 69 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelops ID 4CD3E71B-54F5-47A2-231A-AB9SCIBDEASS

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number: 08698172)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Note £000 £000
Assets
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment 15 2.107 2512
Right-of-use assets 16 16,362 19,534
Intangible assets 17 225370 134,863
Investments in associates iR 6 9
Other investments 20 737 635
244 602 157,643
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 21 70,066 48,862
Current tax asset 1,719 1,685
Cash and cash equivalents 23 93,398 98,501
165,183 149,048
Total assets 409,785 306,691
Equity and liahilitics
Equity
Calted up share capitd 24 | 1
Share premium 23 202,163 202,163
Capital contribution 55.833 -
Retained earnings 28,027 23,424
Total cquity atributable 1o owners of the company 286,024 227588
Noeo-controlling interests an (643) 411)
lotal cquity 285381 227,177
Non-current liabtities
| ease hinbilities 16 14.922 18,019
Trade and other pas ables 2% 43.949 10.983
Deferred tax liabilities B3 1.063 -
5%.936 29,004
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 641,904 44,943
L.ease fiabilities 15 3500 3.318
Current tax liabilily - 2231
Provisions 20 &4 18
64.468 50,510

The notes on pages 26 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statcments,
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DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3E71B-54F5-47A2-$31A-AB99CIBDEASS

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number: 08698172)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

Note £ 000 £ 000
Total liabilities 124,404 79.514
409,733 306,691

Total equity and liabilities

The financial stalements on pages 16 w 69 are appeoved by the Board of Directars on 13 April 2022 and signed
on its behalf by:

DocuSgned by
@w\.m\. Mortaw

ABSBSPANS0D84CT
D 1. Morton

Director

The noles on pages 26 to 69 form an inlegral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope 1D 4CD3E718-54F5-47A2-931A-AB9SCOBDE49S

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number: 08698172)

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

31 December

31 December

2021 2020

Note £ 000 £ 000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 18 300,588 202,163
Total non-current assets 309,588 202,163
Current assets
Trade and other receivables ) 21 1,657 5
Cash and cash equivalents 23 1,189 675
Total current assets 2,846 730
Total assets 312,434 202,913
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Called up share capital 24 | .
Share premium 23 202,163 202,163
Captal contribution 55,833 -
Retained earnings 20,749 346
Total equity 2178.746 202,710
Non-current fiabilities
Trade and other payable« 28 31,277 -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 1,941 203
Provisions 29 470 -
Total current liabilities 2,411 203
Total Habilitics 33,688 203
Total equity and habilities 312,434 202,913

The financial statements 61 pages 16 to 69 arc approved by the Board of Dircctors on 13 Aprii 2022 and signed

on its behalf by:

Doculigned by:

Duncan. Marton.

BARRSHALSR084CT
. D. Morton

Director

The notes on pages 26 ta 69 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSgn Envelope 1D 4GD3E7 1B-54F5-47A2-831A-ABI9CIBDE495

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note(s) £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Prolit before tax B.168 3367
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 6 11,933 7,772
Profil on disposal of property plant and equipment 6 (27) (9}
loreign exchange loss-{gain) 604 (10}
Net finance cost 112 711 606
Share of loss ol associates accounied for using the equity method - &

21419 11.732
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables 2] (22.934) 5,877
Increase in trade and other pay ables 28 17.648 8.020
[ncrease (decrease) in provisions 29 46 4)
Cash generated from operations 16,179 25,625
Income lases piid (-4.526) (2,599}
interest paitl {400) {242}
Net cash inflow from operating activitics 11.233 22784
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received bt 3 3i
Purchascs of property. planl and equipmunt s {741y (1,137
Procecds from sale of property plant and equipment 38 17
Procecds [rom sale of other investments - 59
Purchases of other investments 18 (57) "
Acquisition of subsidiaries (64,3530} -
Contribution of capitat from parent 35.833 -
Net cash cutlow {from investing activities {9,454) (1,039)
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease Lability puyiments {3.568) {4,000y
Dividends paid (271) -
Net cash outfiow from financing activitics 37 (3,839 (4,000)
Net (deereaseYincrease in cash and cash equivaleats (2,040 17,745
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Fanaary 98,501 79,969
Llleet of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held £3,063) 787
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 13 93,398 98,501

The notes on pages 26 Lo 69 form an inlegral part of these financial stalements.
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DocuSign Envelope 10 4CD3E71B-54F5-47A2-531A-AB39CI8DE4D5

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Company Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note £ (g0 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax 20,203 (241)
Adjustments (o cash flows from non-cash ilems
Foreign exchange gatn [634) -
19,569 (241)
Increase in irade and other receivables 27 (1,582) (7N
Increase in trade and other payables 28 1,69% 59
Inerease in provisions 19 479 -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 20,155 (259)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acguisition of subsidiaries 18 {76,108) -
Revaluation on investments held at cost 634 .
Contribution of capital form parent 55833 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (19,64 1) -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents 514 (2359)
Cash and cash cquivalents at | fanuary 675 934
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,189 675

The notes on pages 26 to 69 form an micgrat part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope 1D 4CDRET1B-S4F5-47A2-931A-AD95CIDDEASS

TiAA International! Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

I  General information

These consolidated financial statements comprise the {inancial statements of TIAA Interational Holdings 2
Limited {the “Company™} a privale company limited by shares. and its subsidiarics (together the “Group™).

The principal activity nf the Group is e provision of real estate and tnfrastructure assel management services,
market research and portfolio management advice.

The principal activity of the Company is that of a holdicg company.

The Cempany is incorporated and domiciled in the Unijted Kingdonr. The address of its registered office is:
9th Floor

201 Bishopsgatc

London, England

EC2M 3IBN

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
Hiese Tancial statements have heen prepared in accordance with UK-adopted  mternational accounting
standards,

The linancial slatements have been preparcd on 2 going concern basis under the historical cost convention,
except for the measurement at fair vatue of financial imtruments, including other investments as sel out in the
accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements requires managenient 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported for assets and labilities as at the reporiing dake and the amounts reported Fos revenues and
eapenses during the period The natre of cstimates means that actual cutcomes could differ Trom those
eslitmates,

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the Imancial statements and noles have heen rounded ofT 10 (he nearest thousand
currency unds unless othenwise stated,

Going concern

Given the significant impact of COVID-19 on the macro-cconomic conditions in which the Group is operating.
the Direclors have placed a particular focus on the appropriatencss of adopting the going concern basis in
preparivg the financiad statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, The Group’s going concern assessinent
considers the Group's principal risks (sec note 4} and is dependent on 2 number of factors, including financial
performance,

Bused on the above. together with avasluble murket information and the Dircctors” knowledge and cxpermnce of
the Group™s business and markets, the Dircctors continue 1o adopt the gomg concern basis i preparing the
awal financial statements {or the veur ended 31 December 2021

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates

Phe principal accouming policies applicd in the preparation of these linancinl statcmenis are set out below
I'hese policies have been consistently applicd to all e vears presented, undess utherwise stuated.
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DocuSign Envelope 10 4CD3E718-54F5-47A2-831A-AB58CIBDE49S

TIAA [nternational Holdings 2 Limited

Naotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective
There are no amendmenis io accounting standards, or {FRS Interpretations Commitlee interpretations that are
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 that have a material impact on the Group's financial statements

Changes in accounting policy

The accounting policies set out in lhese financial siatements have been applied consistentty 1o all years
preseated, A number of new standards, amendments (o standards and iMerpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, but do not have a material effect on these financial statements,

Consalidation

Subsidizries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has righis to, variable returns from its involvement with the cntity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully conselidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that controt
ceases,

The Group reassesses whethier or not it controls an entily if facls and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one ar imore of the elements of control, on an annual basis.

The consolidated financial statcments are based on the finaneial statements of the individual subsidiaries drawn
up using the standard Group accounting policies, Accounting policies applied by individual subsidiarics have
been revised where necessary o cnsuse consistency with Group policics for consolidation purposes.

Alt intra-group tronsactions and batances between Group entities are eliminaed on consolidation.

Business combination

The aequisition methad of secounting 15 used 10 account tor all business combinations. regardiess of whether
cqunty instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred Tor the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

+ T vahles of the assets ransterred:

+  liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired hysiness;

+equily interests issued by the Group;

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent copsideration arrngement; and
« Tair value of any pre-existing equily migrest in the subsidiary |

Identifiable assets acquired and iiabilitics and contingeat labiies assuinad {a a business combination are, with
limiled exceptions, measured initially ar their faie values ai the acquisition date. The Group recogni-es am
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, on an acquisition-by -acquisition basis, either at fair valae or at U
nen-controlling interest’s progortionate share of the acquired entity ’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:
= consideration transferred;
» amount ol any non-controting interest in the acquired entity; and

+ acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity, aver the fair value of the net
identsflable assels acquired is recorded as goodwili. 1§ those amounts are Tess than the Tair value of ihe net
identifiable assets of e business acquired, the difference is recognised <directly in ihe consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss as a bargain purchase
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DocuSign Enveiope ID 4CD3ET 1B-54F5-47A2-931A-ABI9COBDE49S

TIAA Interpational Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financia) Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at Lhe date of exchange. The discount rate used (3.3%) is based on an indicative
estimale of TIAA’s cost ol debt, plus a Z spread of 0.3% and an illiquidity premium.

Conlingent consideration is classified as a [inanciad Hability which is subsequently remeasured to fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated Stalement of Profit or Loss.

Foreign currencies

« Functional and presentation currency

lierns included in the financial statements of cach of the Group's subsidiarics are measured using the currency of
the primary economic eavironment in which the entity operates {the “functional currency™). The consolidated
financial statemenis are presented in British Pounds, which is the Company’s functional currency and the.
Group's presentation currency.

» Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into British Pounds at the rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curiencies are retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the ¢nd of the reporting period.

Non-monetary asscls and liabifities denomirnated in foreign currencics are not retranslued ol the end of the
reporting period and are measured of historical cost (trunslated using the eschange rates on the transaction date),
excepl for non-monetary items carried at fair value, which are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Gains and Yosses arising on transtation are recogaised in profil or loss.

* Group companies

The results and financial position of the Group entitics (none of which has o curreney of 4 hy perinflationary
cconomy ) that have a funclional corrency different from the presentation curreacy are translaled into the
presentation currency on consolidation as follows:

(i) assels and liabilities for each Statement of 1 inancial Posilion are transtaied at the closing rate al the date of
that Statement of Ninancial Position;

(1) income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dale of the transaction: and

(iiv) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income Lo the translaiion reserve.

On the disposal of a forcign operation (that is_ a disposal of the Group™s entire interest in o forciga operation. or
a disposal involving foss of controd over a subsidiary that incliedes o foreipn operation) all of the eachange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of dat operation attributable to the cquity holders of the company
are 1classified to prolit or loss.

Goodwill and farr value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a forcign enlily are treated as assets and
liabifities ol the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate, Eaclunge differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition

Reventie is mcasured wt the fair value of the consideration received or reccivable, and represents amounts
receivable Tor services provided, stated net of vatue added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount ol the revenue can be reliably measured: when it is probable that future cconomic benefits will Now 1o
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for cach of the Group's aclivities, as described below. The
Group bases i eslimate of retum on historical resulis. taking into considerasion the 1y pe of customer. the type
ol transaction and the specitics of gach arrangement.
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DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3E71B-54F 5-47A2-931A-AB99C9BDE435

TiAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

* Fee fricome

Fee income includes management fees, advisory fees, transaction fees, development fees and performance fees
stated net of rebates. Management fees. transaction fees, development fees and advisory fees are recognised in
the accounting period in which the associated investment management or transaction services are provided.
Performance fees are recognised when the prescribed performance hurdles ase achieved and it is certain that a
fee will crystallise as a result,

« Other aperating income
Income from transfer pricing is recognised on a cost plus allocation to other TIAA affilinted emities.

Investments in associates

Investments in associates are those over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. These are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Significant influence 5 considered to be
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee and is usually evidenced when the
Group owns between 20% and 50% of that company’s voting rights.

Investments in assuciated entities are initially recerded at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the Group’s share of thic profits or losses of the associated entity afier acquisition, At the date of
acquisition any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the Tair values of the identi{iable net
assets of the associated entity is recognised as goodwill. The carry ing amount of these investments is reduced o
recognise any impairment of the value of the individual investment. 1f the Group's share of tosses exceeds its
interest in an sssociated entity the carrying value of that investiment is reduced 1o nil and the recognition of any
fither Tosses is discantinued unless the Group has an obligation to make further funding contributions to thit
associated enlity,

Where a Group entily has transactions with an associated entity of the Group. unrealised profits and losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associated enlity. Accounting policies of
associated entitics have been changed where necessary to enswre consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Where there is a disposal of an investment in an associated entity, the carrying valve of the investment held on
the Statement of Financial Position at the daie of disposal is removed and offset against the consideration
received for that investment, with the nel profit or loss on disposal being recognised in (he consolidated
Statement of Profit o Loss.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and cxpense are recognised within finance income and linance costs in the Statement of Profit
or Loss using the effective interest rate method. cxeept for borrowing costs relating 1o qualifying assets, which
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. The Group has chosen to capitalise borrowing costs on ali
qualifying asseis irrespective of whether they are measured at fair vatue or not.

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and af allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective inlerest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimaled future cash paymenis or receipts throughouwt the expected life of
the financial instrument, or a shorter period where appropriale, to the net carrving amount of the financial asset
or finaneial labiiity. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example. prepayment options) but does not consider fulure
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract ihat are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
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DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3ET1B-54F5-47A2-931A-ABI9CIBDE49S

TI1AA International Heldings 2 Limited
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at acquisition cost, defined as the aggrepate amount paid
and the fair value of any other consideration given 1o acquire the assel, including any costs directly attributable
1o bringing the asseis to the Jocation and condition necessary for then 10 be capable of operating in the manner
inlended by managemen:. Assets are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
recognised impairment loss,

Depreciation
Bepreciation is provided al rates caleulaled Lo write ofY the cosl, fess estimaled residual value, based on prices
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. of each assel over its expecled useful life as follows:

Asset class Depreciation method and rate

Leasehold impravements :;lra.ight ling basis over the period of the
case

Furniture and Nixtures straight line basis over 3 - § years

Office equipment straight linc basis over 3 - 8 years

Comiputer hardware siraight line basis over 3 years

Computer software straight line hasis over 3 years

. . straight ling hasis over the shorter of

Right of use asscls . s
estimaled lie or Jease term

The camying values of property . pland and equipmeat wee reviewed lor impairment when it becomes apparent

that the carrying value may not be recoverable. and o such circumstances the assels are written down

immeditely o their regoverable smoum,

An ilem of propeity, plant and equipment is derceopnised upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits
are expected Lo arise from the continued wse of the asset The gain or loss arising on disposal or relirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
included in the Siatement of Profit or Loss.

Intangible assets
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the (otal agquisition dale fair value of
the ideatiftable assets, liabilitics and contingent assets acquired.

Cost comprises the Tair value of the assets given, liabikities assumed and cquity instrumients issued, plus the
amoutit of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree plus, il the business combination is achieved i stages,
the fair value of the existing equity interesl in the acquirce. Direct costs of ucquisilion are recogrised
immediately as an expense

Goodwill arising on a business combinalion is capualised as an intangible assel with any impairment in carrying
viluee being charged 1o the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive fcome. When the [air value of the
wdentrtinble assets, linhiltties and conlingent lubtlitics exceed the fair value of the consideranon paid, the excess
ev credited in full to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the acquisilton date.

Goodwill on business combinalions is determined to have an indefinile uwsclul Jile and is nol subject to
amortisation,

Investment management contracls have been identificd as o separately identifiable intangibie asset and are
recognised al fair value, calculated by applying a discounted cash Row method to future recurring revenue
streams arising {rom the contracts. The investment management contracts have a finite usclul life and are carvicd
at cost less accumulated amortisation,

Puge 30



DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3E71B-54F5-47A2-931A-A899CSBGE435

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Amortisation

Asset class Amortisation method and rate
Open-ended investment management contructs straight bine basis over 13 years
Closed-ended investment management contracts over the period of the contract

Impairment of intangible assets

Assels that have an indefinite useful life - for example, goodwill - are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumslances indicate a potential
impainnent. Assets that are subject o depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The fair value is
based on forecasts approved by the board, extrapelated for expected future growth rates and discounted at a risk
adjusted discount rate based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.
Non-financial assets ather than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

Financial Instruments

* Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and Gnancial liabibitics are recognised on the Group'’s halance sheet when the Group has
become a nparly 10 the contractuzl obiigations of the financial instrument. The Group determines the
ciassification of its financial instruments at inilial recognition in accordance with the calegories outlined below
and re-evaluaies this designation at each reporting period end. When financial instruments we recognised
iitially, they arc measured ot fair value, being the transaction price plus, in the case of financial asscls and
financial liabilitics not at farr value through the Stateinent of Prefit or Loss, directhy attributable transaction
costs.

« Financial assets

All linancial assets are subject to review tor impairment at feast at each reporting date te identity whether there
is any obiective evidence that a financial asset 1y impaired. Ditferent crileria (o determine impairment are
applicd for cach category of financisl assets. which are deseribed below. All incomie and expenses relating to
financial assels that are recognised in Statement of Prolit or Loss are presented within {inance costs, linance
income or other (inancial items, excepl for impairment of tade receivables which is presented within expenses.
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* Financial liahilities

The Group’s financial fiohilives include trade and other payables. Financial liabilities are measwred
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective Interest method, except for financial liabilities held for trading
of designated at fair value throogh the Profit and Loss account, that are carried subsequently at fair vahwe with
guins or losses recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

* Derecognition

The Graup derecognises o financial asset when the contraciual rights to the cash flow from the assel expite. or it
transiers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows on the Ninancid) assel s a lransaction in which
substantially atl the risks and rewurds of ownership of the (isancial asset are transterred, Any interest in
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability,
The Group derecognises a linancial liability when ity contractual obligations are eatinguished. discharged or
cancelled or have expired.

* Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constritctive obligation, as a result of past
events. for which it is probable that an owtflow of cconomic benefits will be requited to scttle the obligation. and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Provisions arc measured ai the present vatue ol the expenditures expected 1o be required to seile the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that rellects crrrent markel 2sessments of the tme value of money and the risk specific
the obligation. The incrcase in the provision due o the passage of tme s recagnised as intcrest cxpense

Other investments

Other investments comprise of equity investments that do not have {iacd maturitics and (ixed or determinable
payments, and management inlends o bodd thom for the medium 0 long-teym. Other mvestiments are measuned
al fair value through the Siatcinent of Protit of Loss

Oiher inveslments are presemied as non-current assels unlcss they mature, or management intends 1o disposc ol
them within 12 months of the cad of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents
{*ash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and » bank

Trade receivables

I'rade recetvables are amounts due from customers for services performed i the ordinary course of business. 1f
cotivetion is expecied in one year of Jess {or in the normg) operating eycle of thy business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. 1T not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade teceavables wre recognised initially ai the lransaciion peive. They are subsequently mcasured at amortised
cont using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for the unpairment of trade
recenvables is established when there is objective evidence that the group will not be able 1o colieel all amowns
duc wecording @ the original teons of the receivables.

the Group applies the IFRS Y simplitied approach 1o measuring expected credit losses which uses a Hiklime
unpeeied loss allowance for b trade receivables To measure the expected oiedit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristivs andd the days past due

Prepayments

Prepayments arc carrred at cost ess any aceurnuiated impainment losses
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Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Cquity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
reseurces received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. IT payment is deferred
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis,

Members' remuneration
Fhe policy to allocale profits is governed by the anended members’ agreement dated 9 March 2021,

Members' capital

Members” capital that is net automatically repayable on retirement is ¢lassified as equity. Members™ capital that
is automatically repayable on retirements is classified as a liability, Members® capital, whether classitied as
equity or a liability are not interest bearing,

Taxation

Tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent that it refates (o items recognised
dircetly in other comprehensive income or cquily - in which case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive inceme or equity.

The current income lax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
date of the Statement of Financial Position in the countries where the Group operates. Management periodically
cvaluates positions taken in tax returns with respeet to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation, and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of mnounts eapected o be paid to the
tux authorities.

Delerred income tax is provided in full, using the fiability method. on emporary dilferences arising between the
tax bascs of assets and liabilities and their carrving amounts in the consolidaled financial siatements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for il it arises from initial recognition of an asset or lability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the tme of the transaction affects neither accounting not
taxable profit nor loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacied or
substantially enacted by the date of the Statement ol Financiak Position and are expected o apply when the
related deferred income tax assel is realised or the deferred income tax hability is settied.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that fulure taxable profic will be
avidlable against which the temporary difTerences ean be wtilised,

Delerred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiarics, except where
the timing of the reversal of the wmporary dilference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary dilfference will not reverse in the loresecable future.

Deferred income tax assets and labilities are afiset when there is a legally enforeeable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax habtlities and when the delerred fncome tax assets and liabilities relate (0 income tanes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity o1 different taxable entities where there is
an inlention to settle the halances on a net hasis

Employee benefits
The Croup operates various employment schemes, inwluding both defined conUibution pension plans and

medical plans.

* Defined contribution pension vbligaiion
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A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions. The Group has no
lcgal ar constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions (o publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or volumtary basis. The Group has ne further payment obligalions
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions arc recognised as an cmployee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid coniributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

= Long term incentive plan

The Group has accrued for Jong-term cash ~cltled deferred compensation which is determined by an estimate of
the value of the expected future payments. Actual long-term cash settled deferred compensation could vary from
those estimates.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period. which is the peried over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are {0 be satisfied.

Al the end of each reporting period the Group revises its estimates ol the benelit that s expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision 1o original cstimate, ifany, in the Statcrment of Profit o' oss.

Other expenses
Capenses include fegal, accounting, auditing and other fees. They are recognised in the Consolidated Statermnent
of Profit of Loss in the period in which they are incuned {on an accruals basis).
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Leases
The Group leases various assets, camprising property, plant, cquipmient.

The determination whether an arrangement is, or comains, a lease is based on whether the contract conveys a
right 1o control the use of an idemified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Fhe following sets out the Group’s Iease aceouuting policy for all leases with the exception of leases with a low
value and term of 12 montiis or less for which/where we have taken the exemption under the standard. These are
expensed to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

At the ingeption of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. A right-of-use asset
1s capitalised in the Statement of Financial Peosition at cost, which comprises the present value of minimum lease
payments determined at the inception of the lease. A lease liability of equivalent value is also recognised.
Right-of-use assels are depreciated using the straight line method over the shorter of estimated life or the lease
terr.

Deprecistion is included within the ling item administrative expenses in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Under iI'RS 16 the right-of-use assets will be tested for impairment in accordunce with 1AS 36 *lmpaiment of
Assels’. This will replace the previous requirement 1o recognise a provision for an onerous lease. The Group has
clected 1o apply the exemplion to treal existing onerous leases as impairments on adoption.

The corresponding lease hability is included on the Statement of Financial Position as a lease liability. The lease
liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Lease puyments are apportinned
between a finance charge and a reduction of the lease liability based on the constant interest rate applied to the
remaining bhalance of the liabilitv. Interest expense is included within the line item net finance costs in the
Statement of Profit of Luss.

The lease paymenis comprise fixed payments and variable lease payinents that depend on an index or a rage,
initially measured using the minimum index or rate at inception date. The payments also include uny lease
incentives and any penalty payments for terminating the lease, il the lease term reflecis the lessee exercising that
oplion.

The lease term delermined comprises the non-cancellable period ol the fease coniract. Periods cavered by an
option 1o extend the fease arg included if the Group has reasonable certainty that the option will be exercised and
pertods covered by the aption {o lerminate are included if it is reasonably corain that this will not be exercised,

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment to the related righi-of-use asset)
when there is a change in future lease paynients due 1o a renegotialion or market rent review. a change of an
index or rate or a reassessment of the lease werm.

The lease payments are discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing raie is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to bonew the funds necessany to obtain an asset of similar value (o the
right-uf-use asset in a similar economic environment with simitar lerms. security and conditions.

Dividend income
Dividend icome is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
sitements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company”s shareholders.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continieally evaluated and are based on historical experience as adjusted for
current market conditions and other factors,

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the Nature. The resulting accounting eslimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the refated actual results. Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factocs, including expectations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable
under the circumstances. Fhe estimates that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment lo the carrying
amounts of assets and Habtbities within the next finapcial year are putlined below.

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment and investment manszgement contracts

The depreciation charge for property, plamt and eqoipment and the amortisation charge for investmen
management contracts are sensitive Lo changes in the estimated useful economic lives and residual value of the
assets. The uscful ceonomic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually in line with the praperty. plant
and equipment and intangible assets accounting poticy. They are amended when necessary to reflect eurrent
eslimates, hased on techaological advancemont, future investments. cconomic wiilization and the physical
condhition ol the assefs Invesimenl mapagement contracts are amended where necessary to refleet the current
circumstonees of the underlying eontracis.

Dieferred compensation scheme
the Group has acoived for a long-term defened compensation scheme which is determined by an estimate of
the value of the expected future payments. Actira! outcomes could vary lrom those cstimales.

Development fees .
Developnent fees are recogndsed throughout the period in which development management services are
provided, on the basis of the amount of work completed in the perind. This requires reasomable estimates and
nrdpements to be made. Should any vver or under-cstimate be made, fees in {utare periods wonld be adjusted o
rellect this. Total development and develepment performance foes recopnised during the veyr amounted to
E4.982 000 (2020: £5,034.000).

lovestments in subsidiaries
As noled in the accounting policies above. invesiments in subsidiares are held at cost. Manasgemeni reviews the
invesinient at each period end for any signs of tmpairment.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intanpiblc assets are wsted for ippatment 0 dine with the policy deserbed i note 2 1o these financial
tteowents When assessing impairment ol intangibles, management considers laclors including the long term
prowth ate and discount riates applicd, and hislorical expericnce Any goodwill impairment is recognised
muncdtaiely 83 an expense and 8 not subsequently reversed,

tmpairment of (rade and other receivables

the Group makes an gstimate of the recoverable value of tade and other receivables. When assessing
impairment of trade and other receivables, management considers [actors including the credit rating of the
receivable. the ageing profile of receivables and hisioricat eaperience. The Group applies the ITRS 9 simplificd
approach 10 measuring expected crzdit losses which uses a lifotime oxpected loss aliowance for alt trade
meceivables.
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Fair values of contingent Habilities and purchase consideration in a business combination
Contingent consideration is measured on future fund performance and is subsequently remeasured at each
reporting daie. Refer to accounting policy, "Business combination” on pages 27-28 of these financial statements

{or further detail.
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4 Capital reseurces and rislt management

Group and Company

Management of capital

The objectives inherent in the capital management policy of the Group arg.

+ To maintain a strong capital base;

» Lo muet regulatory requirements at alt lirnes in abt jurisdictions in which the Group operates;
» To ensyre that the Group can continve as a going concern; and

+ 1o provide an adequate return to sharchoiders

In order (0 maintain or adjust the capital strecture, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
sharehalders. return capital to sharcholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Management view the following as the capital of the Company and Group:
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31 December 31 December
2021 2020
£000 £000
Group
Called up share capital ! |
Share premium 202,163 202,163
Capital contribution 55,833 -
Retained earnings 28,027 25,424
Non-controlting interests (643} 41h
285,381 227177
Cempany
Called up share capital | 1
Share premium 202,163 202,163
Capital contribution 55,833 -
Retained earnings 20,749 546
278,746 202,710

Financical rish management

Management consider financial risk management on a Group hasis. Management consider that the Group has
the following risks:

+ Liquidity risk

+ Market risk

« Foreign currency risk

+ Credit risk

« Brexit risk

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed (o liguidity risk which is the risk that the Group will have insufficient cash resources (o
mect it obligations as they fall due. Management manage liquidity risk by performing ca-h flow forecasting in
the operating entities of the Group Forecasts of liquidity requirements are monitored (o ensure the Group has
sufficient cash to meei its operational needs. Given the ultimate Group struciure the liquidiy' risk is seen as
minimal for the Group. The fellowing are the undiscounied contractual maturities of financial labilities of the
Group:

AL31 December 2021
Due between

; - . Due in under 3 months  Due between | Due between 2
Non derivative financial

liabitities 3 months and T year  and 2 years and 5 years Total
£000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other pavables 53,687 23,406 - 44,182 123,275
Dreferred tax lisbilities - - - 1,065 1,063
Provisions 64 - - - 6
53751 23,406 - 45,247 124,404
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At 31 December 2020

Due between

Non derivative financial Pue in under 3 months  Due between | Due between 2

liabilities 3 months and tyear  and 2 years and 5 years Total
£400 £0040 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other pavables 42,909 23,250 - 10,983 77,144

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash (lows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because ol
changes in market prices. The Group’s market risks arise from (4) a significant reduction in income and
valuation to a financial asset or liabiity and (b) a significant dectine in the value of AUM. The Group is able Lo
miligate risk (to a cerlain extent) via natural hedging within the Group, being (he nawral offset of assets and
tiabilities of the same currency. It i important to note, the usc of this approach does not prevent losses outside
these {imits in the event of more significant market movements.

sensitivities o market risks included below are based on a change in one factor while holding other factors
constant, In practice, this i unfikely to occur, and changes in some of the faclors may be correlated  for
gxample. changes in inferest rate and changes in foreign currency rate.

The Group ha. been quick 1o address issues created by the COVID-19 pandemic, allowing the Group to
continue W meat the needs of its customers whitst adhering o strict Government guidelines  The health, safety
and welfire ofour employees and those in ke communitics we serve has heen under intense focus, cnsuring our
operatonal and support management teams are able to perform at optimum levels,

The Tonper-term impact of COVID-Y remiins uncertain with many unknowns. but the principles of investing,
the long-tenm growth opporiuaitics and the resibience of the Groeup’s business modcel. cnsure that the Group is
well-positioned o meet the challenges and opportunitics resulting from the crisis.

Brexit has caused implications distributing products hom the UK into the LU and the access o the EU and UK
markets depends on the reguiation of the investmen! manager Management proposed a pumber ol Brexit plans
i 2019, alt ol which have been implemented and are operating cffectively.,

Both the COVID-19 pandemic. Brexit and the Ukraine-Russia war are recent world events that could have an
mmpact on the business, asset valuntion and revenue. This is managed via a misture of a diversity of clicats,
distribution channels, products and regions so there is nul a concentration in une particular parl of the market
and seeking fecs that are not solely related to market value,

Foreign exchange risk

The Company and its subsidiarics thal operale inlernationally are exposed 1o lorcign exchange risk, primarily
with respect to the Furo. Foreign exchange risk arises in respect of those rocognised monetars financial asscls
and lighititics that are not in the functional currency of (he respective company entily.

the Group has varivus financiab assets such as irade and other receivables and cash in short term deposits thal
atise diecethy from its operations. The Group™s priccipal lnancial fabilities are irade and otber payables. The
muan purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations.

Management consider foreign eachange risk on a Group basis rather than on an enlity by entity basis. The

funclivnal currency of the Group is British Pounds: the {functional currency of the Company and ils principal
subsidiaries is British Pounds,
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The Group had the feflowing main currency exposure ai 31 December 2021:

Assets Liabilities Net exposure
Currency £ 000 £ 000 £0600
AUD 1,727 463 1,262
CAD - 2 (2)
CRY 367 101 266
DKW 1,452 1,353 98
FUR 60,124 40,267 19,857
HKD 32 - 32
IPY 723 49 674
SEK 1,397 135 1,262
SGD 1,732 469 1,263
CIIF 16 h] 11
NZD Tt 70 (5%
usn 3,460 3,633 845

74,041 48,571 23470

The Group had the following main currency exposure ot 31 December 2020:

Assels Liabilities Net exposure
Currency £ 060 £4000 £000
AL 3433 673 2.782
EUR 47.238 5713 41525
SEK 756 125 671
SGD 590 783 (195}
UsD 735 3.601 1,154
56.834 10,897 45,937

Ihe Group's exposure to foreign currencies held on the balance sheet could affect the Group's profit or foss. At
3t December 2021 i GBP had swengthened by 10% against the ahove currencies and all other variables were
held constant. pre-tay profit for the year would have been reduced by £2,547,000 (2020: £4.394,000). This
sensilivity_analysis is considered (o be representative of the Group's posttion throughout the year.

Credit risk management

Cregit risk is the risk that one party 1o a lnancial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation, The Group has o significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents hetd @t banks and trade reecivables. The Company’s subsidiaries’ main
cuslgmers are property owning companies Cash balances are held with high credd quality linancial ingtitutions
(UBB+ graded and the Group has policics o limil the amownt of credit exposure o any [nancial institution. No
[Tnancial assets are deemed io be impaired or past due ai year end.

No {20200 no) credit limits were exceeded during the reporting year. and management docs net expect any
josses for non-performance by counterparties.
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5 Revenue
Group
The analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from continuing operations is as follows:

2021 2020

£ 000 £ 000
Management [Fees BR.718 79.556
Development Fees 4.982 5.034
| ransaction ['eex 4.400 5.252
Pertormance Fees 7.066 3,060

105,166 92,902

Company

Dring the vear the Company received a dividend rom TIAA International Holdings 3 Limited for £20,315,000
(2020: £Nil).

6 Administrative expenses

Group
Operating profit is arrived at after charging, (erediting):

2021 2020

L 000 £000
Staft costs 107918 88,308
Depreciation on night-of-usc assefs 3446 3,580
Deprecialion on property. plant and cquipment 1.342 1,202
Amartisation expense 7.145 2.990
Forcign exchange (gains) losses 604 (1
Profm on disposal of property, plant and cquipment (27 9)
Other administrative cxpenses 26,627 20,917

147,055 116,978

7 Auditors' remuneration
Group

2021 2020

£ 000 £009
Audit of the Company and subsidiary financial statements 738 645
Other fecs to auditors
Non-audil services 2 et
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Company

2021 . 2020

£ 000 £000
*Audit of the Company financial statements 188 134

138 134

*All fees payable to the Company's auditors relate to the audit of the Company's financial statcments, so no split
for non-audit services is required.

8 Directors' remuneration

The following emoluments were paid by the Company and the other Group companies in respect of the services
of Dircctors of the Company and other Group companies:

Group
2021 2020
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 1,619 +.046
Other pension costs 58 62
1.677 4,708

The emolwments paid by the Company and the other Group companics in respect of services provided by the
highest paid Director ol the Contpany and other Group companics were as follows:

2021 2020

£ 0G0 £ Go0
Wages and salaries 1.444 4,252
Other pension cosls 46 46
1,490 4,298

Company
The emoluments of B 1. Morton and M. L L. Sales are paid by Nuveen Adminsstration Limited which mahes
no recharge to (he Company (2020- £nil). The emeluments of O, Salamu arc paid by the ultimate pareal. T{AA
with no recharge being made 1o the Company. The Dircctors are directors of a number of {ellow subsidiaries and
their total emolunments are included in the aggregate of directors emotuments disclosed in those fnancial
statemenls
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

9 Employee information

Group

The aggregate staff costs were as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £ 000
Wages and salaries 89605 59,885
Social security costs 4,941 4163
Pension costs, defined contribulion scheme 4436 3638
Redundaney 1,610 15,971
Other employee expense 7.326 4651
107.9i8 88.308

Lhe average number of persons cmiployed by the Grouys during the year. anafysed by catcgory was as follows:

2021 2020
No. No.
Support & admimsiration 225 215
Investment professionals 172 14t
Busmess development & marketing 57 52
94 08
Company
The Compains has no smployees (2020: nil)
10 Other operating income
e andly «1s ol the Group's other operating income for the year is as loliows:
2021 2020
£ 000 £ 004
| ransfer pricing - related parties 48,8140 26.687
Miscellaneous ather operating income 1,988 1.368
50,798 28,055

[ ransier pricing meome relates 1o cust plus allocation Lo other TIAA affilizted entitios.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

11 Finance income

Group
2021 2020
£ 000 £ 000

Finance income
Other interest receivable 3 31

Total finance income 3 31

12 Finance costs

Group

2021 2020
£000 £ 000

Finance costs }
Other interest expense 744 637

Total linance costs 7d4 637

13 {ncome tax expense
a) Analysis of tax charge for the year
Group

Tax charged in the Stalement of Profit or Loss

202) 2020
£ 000 £ 000

Current taxation
UK ¢orporalion 1ax 15354 2434

Deferred taxation
Cureent vear deferred tax {crediticharpe l,

=
=2}
o
b
-4
-~}

Tax expense in the Stateiment of Protit or Loss

U
| T
(]
i-&-
3]
~
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

b} Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

The differcnce between the twlal current tax charge shown above and the amount caleolated applying the
standard rate of UK corporation {ax to the profit before tax is as follows:

202} 2020

£ 000 £ 000
Profit before tax 8.168 3,367
Tax on profit on ordivary activities at standard corporation tax rate of
1996 (2020 19%0) 1,354 640
Tax effect of:
Increase (decrease) from efieet ol expenses not deductible in
determining taxable profil {tax loss) 1,358 756
Increase (decrease) from eficel ol foreign tax rates (408} 808
Deferred ax expense (credit) relating to changes in tax rates or laws 1,065 277
Short term timing differences 255 230
Tetal tax charge b 3.6 _2,3:" I

Factors that may affect future tax charges

In the Spring Budget 2020, the UK Goscernment announced that from | April 2020 (he corporation tas rale
would remain at 19%a {rather than reducing 1o 17" as previously esacted). [he Government made o sumber of
budget unnouncements on 3 March 202t These include confirming that the rate of corporation tax will increase
to 25% from | Aprit 2023, This new law wis substantively enacted an 24 May 2021, Delerred tanes al the
Statement of Financial Position date have been measurcd using these enacted tax rates and refllected in these
financial statements.

14 Financial instruments

Group

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair vatue through profit or loss

Carrying value

Fair value

31 December

31 December 3 December

31 December

2021 2020 202t 2020
£ 000 £009 £ 006 £ 000
Otler iy eslinents 757 B35 737 0635
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Financial assets at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Financial habilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade and other pay ables

Carrying value

31 December 3t December

Fair value

31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2021 2029

£ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
93,398 98,30t 93,398 98,501
70,066 48.862 70,066 48,862
163,464 147,363 163,464 147,363
Carrying value Fair value '

31 December 31 December

31 December 31 December

2021 2020 202i 2020
£000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
104,833 535,789 104,833 55,789
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TIAA Iuternational Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

16 Leases

Group

(i) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position

Right-of-use assets
Buildings
Vehicles

L.ease liabilities
Current
Non-current

(ii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets
Buildings
Vehicles

Interest expense {included in finance cost)

The total cash outflow for leases i1 2021 was £3,565. 000 (2020: £4,000.000).

17 Intangible assets

Group

Cost:

At 1 January 2021
Additions

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated Amaortisation:
At | January 2021

Amertisation charge

At 31 December 2021

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£000 £000
16.238 19,406
124 128
16,362 19,534
3,500 3,318
14,922 18,019
18,422 21,337
2021 2020
£000 £ 000
3,356 3.501
9 79
3,446 3.580
344 393
Investment
manigement
Goodwill contracts Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 400
124,610 11144 163,754
50,449 47.203 97,652
175,039 38,347 263,406
- 30,891 30891
(ALE 7,145
- 38.036 38,036
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

lavestment
management
Goodwili contracts Total
£000 £000 £ 000
Net Book Value
As al 31 December 2021 175.059 50311 225,370
As at 31 December 2020 124,610 10,253 134,863

On 9 March 2021 the Group acquired 99% ol the issued shared capital of Glennmont. For details of the
acquisition refer to note 19 - Business combination.

The future recurring revenues of the purchased investment management contracts (“IMC"} have been valued
using a discounted cash flow model over the uselul economic life of the underlying contracts.

The IMC's are amortised between | - 15 years The remaining amortisation period of the IMCs are between 1 -9
years,

Amortisation of intangible asscts is recognised within admirustrative expenscs. In accordance with 1AS 36
‘Impairment of A<cts management has calculated the recoverable amount of botl: goodwill and Lhe investment
management coilracts via a combination of discounted cash flow and EBITDA valuation models

The goodwill i~ not amorttsed but is subject 1o an impairment review every year, as and when indicators of
impairment exists

The Group consider- ssell to have a single cash generting unit 1o which goodwill is aliocated  The recoverable
vatue of goodwidl for the Company at year end has been determined by a value in use calenlition, using cash
Nows based on he Group's | year operating plan approved by the board, and a terminal value for the period
thereafter The key assumptions applied w the Group™s 5 year operating plan are markel performance and net
fund flows.

The terminal value bas been caleulated using @ lonrg term growil: rale of 3% in perpetuily.
£ s g pery b

A risk adjusted discount rate of 12.5% (2020: 14.8%) has been applicd. The resulting value in usc has been
compared with the carying value of the Group's intangible assets o delenming 1 an impairment is required.

Sensitivity analysis has been peclonmed by adiusting key assumptions, such as the discount rate and growth rate.
The mmodel continued 1o show Readroom over the carry ing value and thus there were no impairment charges in
2020.

As part of the impatrment review, a number of scenarios have been ran in isolation 10 idenufy the points at
which impairments would potentially need 10 be recognised. The cut-ofT at which each of the inpuls would
create an impairment are as follows. based on an already stiessed case which excludes the performance fee due:

Current inclusion Cut-off for
for impairment inpairment at each
review change in inputs
Weighted Average Cost ol Capital 129 13%
Achicvernent of Operating Plan ' 100° 899,
Growth in Perpetuity 3% 2%
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2028

There temains flexibility within the Group’s cost base to manage profitability via adjustments w0 variable

remuncration.

Management considers that the likelibood of any or all of the above scenarios accurring is fow.

1% lnvestmenis

Group subsidiaries

All subsidiary undertakings of the Group as listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares.
The prapoction of shares held by the Group equales to the propartion of voting rights. All subsidiary
yndertakings have been included in these consolidated financial statements. Desails of the group subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

TIAA International
Holdings 3 Limited

Nuveeu Lavestinent
Management  Holdings
I imited

Nuveen FCACD
Limited
Nuveen Lurope

Lioldings Limuied

Nuveen Growp

Toldings Limiwd

Muveen  Administration
Limited

Nuveen Investinent
Management

taternaticnal Linsited

Nuveen  Munugement
ALFM Limited

Principal activity

tolding company

Holding company

Voiding compan

tiolding company

Holding compan)

Administration

compan

Operating LOMpars

Operming company

Registered office

201 Bishopsgate.
ECIM3BN
United Kingdom

201 Bishopsgate.
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

201 Bishopsgate,
FOIM BN
Uaited Kingdom

201 Bishopsguie.
G20 3N
Uaited Kingdom

200 Bishopegate.
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

201 Bishopgate.
102M 3BN
United Kingdam

201 Bishopsgae,
ECIM 3BN
tnited Kingdom

201 Bishopsgaw.

EC2M 3BN
Unifed Kingdum
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London,
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London,
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

Name of subsidiary Principal activity Registered office held
2021 2020

Henderson  Furopean Operating company 4a rue Henri M Schnadt, 93.4% 93.4%
Retail  Property  Fund 1.-2530 Gasperich
Management §.4.r.1 Luxembourg
Nuveen  Management Operating company 43 vue lHeari M Schnadt,  93.4% 93.4%
Company L-2536 Gasperich
{Luxembourg) Not Luxembourg
s.arl
Nuveen Property Operating company FE-15 Seaton Place, St Helier,  99% 99%¢
Management  (Jersey) Jersey, 124 0011
Limited I 'nited Kingdom
Nuveen Fund Operating company Fi-15 Seaton Place, St Helier,  99% 99%,
Management  {lersey) lersey, JE4 0QH
Limited United Kingdom
Nuveen Singapore Operaling vompany 30 RafMes  Place,  #06-00 99 99%,
Private Limited Singapore, Land Fower.,

048623

Singapore
Nuveen (1ranee) SAS  Operaling company 7. rue Scribe 75009 Paris O 099,

Frinee
CLOF 1t {Nol  GP)Y Related to CLOI fuad 201 Bishopsgate.  London,  99% 99%
1 imiled RC2M 33BN

United Kingdom
CHOF ]| (Nol Related to CLOL fund 2061 Bishopegate,  Londor,  99% G9,
Neminee} Limited EC2ZM IBN

United Kingdom
CLOT 11 (No? GP) Retated to CLOF fund 201 Bishopsgawe, London, 99" 99°,
1 inited EC2ZM 38BN

linited Kingdom
ClLOV 11 {Nod GP) Reiated o CEOP qund 201 Bishopsgate.  Londen,  99% 99%,
Limitcd LC2M 3BN

United Kingdam

(1O (G Limited . Relawed o CLOL fund 261 Bishopspate,  London,  99% 690y
LC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

Matador LP  General Dormant 201 Bishopspate,  London, 999, 99%

Partner Limited EC2M 33N
United Kingdom
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Name of subsidiary

Nuveen Corporate
Secretarial Services
Limited
Nuveen Operations
Limited
Nuveen  Ren!  Estate

{Australia) Limited

OMP (G Limited

UK OM
Limited

(LPL) (G

UK OM(LPT) Limited

UK OM
Limited

(1.P2y (GP)

UK OM (LP2) Limiwd

UK. OM
Limited

(LP3y (GP)

UK OM (LP3) Linited

TIAA-CREF

Lusembourg S &rl

Nuveen haly Sl

Principal activity

Dormant

Dormant

Operating conpany

Related 10 OMP fund

Related (o OMP [und

Related w0 OMP tund

Related 1o OMP fund

Related 1o OMP fund

Reluted to OMP fund

Related to OMP fund

Operating compaiy

Operating company

Registered office

201 Bishopsgate, Lendon,
EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom

201 Bishopsgate.  Lendon,

EC2M 31BN
United Kingdom

44 Manin Place, Sydney, NSW
2000

Australia

201 Bishepspate.  London.
LCIM 3BN

United Kingdom

201 Bishopsgate,  London,

CC2M 33N

United Kingdom
201 Bishopsgawe,  London,
LC2M 3BN

United Kingdom
201 Bishopspate.  London.
LC2M 3BN

United Kingdom
201  Bishapsgaie, 1 ondon,
EC2M 33BN

[United Kingdom
20F  Bishopsgale.  London,
EC2M 38N

United Kingdam
201 Bishopsgate.  London.
EC2M 38BN

United Kingdom

4a rue Henst M Schhadt
1.-2330 Gasperich

Luxembourg

Piasza Pio X1, 1. 20123 Milan
itals
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Name of subsidiary

Islazul General Partner
Sarl

Anglo-Sino  Henderson
Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Co Ltd

Nuwveen (Shanghai) Co
L

Estate

(G

Nuoveen  Real
Deht  Pariners
Sarl

T-C Lux
GPSarl

Invesiments

Enhanced Debt Carry
{GP) Sard

LCuropean Cilies
Partnership (GP) S.a.xl

Nuoveen  Management
Austria Gmbl |

Nuveen  Management

iiniand Oy

ERLS APAC 11 (GP)
Sarl

Nuveen Real LEstate
Debt Parters 1} (GP)
Sarl

CLOF 1l
Limited

Vanquish

Principal activity

Operating company

Orerating company

Operdling company

Operating company

Operating company

Operiting company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Related 1o CLOF {und

Registered office

4a rue Henri M Schnadt,
L.-2530 Gaspench
Luvembourg

Unit 22 23B, 36F, China
World Tower, No. |
Jranguomenwai Avenue,
Chaoyang  Disirict,  [00004
Reiing

China

Suite 955 to Suite 96591, I'co
City, No.1788.Nanjing West
Road. Jing ‘An  Dislricl,
Shanghai

China

8 rue Lou Hemmer, L-174
Luxembourg

da rue dlenn M Schnadt,
L.-2530 Gasperch
Luvembourg

4a sue llenri M Schaady,
[.-2330 Gasperich
Lincimbourg

41 rue Henn M Schnadi
1.-2330 Gasperich
Luxembourg

Falkestrafic 1. A-1010 Vienna
Austria
Manneiheiminiie 20, 00100
FHelsinki

FVinland

8 rue Lou Hemmer. 1.-174
Lunembourg

8 ruc Lov Hemmer. L-174,
Luxembourg

I1-15 Seaten Place, St Heler,
Jersey, JE4 OQH
United Kingdom
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Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

held
2021

099y

99

990,

(_)")nn

()()U i

99%y

G4t

992y

‘)( » 1]

Yue

99%y

990,

2020
Y9%

99°,

99%

Lo,

390,

99%

99%%

9%%

999

99%

99°%¢

99,
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 202§

Name of subsidiary

Tokyo Multifamiiy GP
Pte Lid

Nuyeen Alternatives
Eurcpe S.4.r.

Nuveen Asset
Management  Europe
S.arl

Nuveen Heal Estale
Services CimbH
[Auslria)

ERES Europe 11 {C1P)
Sarl

Nuveen [Real LEstate
Debt Partners H1 {GP)
Sarl

Clean Energy Partners
Holdeo LLDP

Glenonmomn Asset

Management Lid

Clean Energy Partners

LLE

Cilennmont RE.BS

Europe S.arl

Glennmont Partners 111
sarl

Glennmong Partners 1V
Narl

Principal activity

Related to
Multifamily Fund

Tokye

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Hoelding company

Operating company

Operating conmpany

Related to Glennmont
RERS Europe Fund

Refated w0 Glennont
Clean Encrgy Fund

Relaied 1o Glennont
Clean Energy Fund

Registered office

8 Robinson Road #14-00 ASC
Building

Singapore

da rue Henrnt M Schnadt,
L-233C Gasperich

Luxembourg

da rue Tenri M Schnady,
L-2530 Gasperich

Luxembourg

Falkestrafle |, A-1010 Vienna
Auslria

4A, rue Henri Schnadt, 1.-2530
Luxembourg
Luxembourg

8 rue Loue lemmer, L-1748
Senningerberg
Laxembourg

4th Floor. Reading Bridge
Fenrse, George Street, Reading
RG1LELS

United Kingdom

dth Floor, Reading Brdge
House, George Streel, Reading,
RGISLS

United Kingdom

#th  Floor. Reading  Bridge
House, George Street, Reading.
RG!Y SLS

United Kingdom

412F, route d'Lisch, L-2086
Luxemboursg

41217, route d'lZsch, L-2086
Luxembeurg

4121, route d'Esch, L-2086
Luxembourg

Page 53

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights
heid

2021 2020
999, Y99
99% 99%,
999, 969,
999, 999,
ggoy 990,
9%, 0994
994, 0%,
9(}“ u (]Uﬂ
GG% 0%
99°, 0%
9904 ("o
990y (I°q



DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3E71B-54F5-47TA2-931A-ABO9COBDEA95

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

MName of subsidiary

Clean Encrgy Partners
CEP Services Lid

Clean Lnergy Partners
CLP2012 Limited

Glenmmont Partners |
Linated

MR Storage Portfolio
[inmsied

Nugreen Saivices AR

Luropean Core-lus
i opistics bund (GP) S.a
r.d

Japun Alternatives
Living GP Pie. L

Principal activity
Administration

company

[Holding company

Related 0 Gleanmont
Clean Energy Fund

Holding compiny

Operaling company

Related  to Lwropean
Logistics bund

Hokding compuny

Registered office

4th  Floor. Reading Rridpge
House, George Street, Reading.
RG1 8LS

Untted Kingdom

4h  Floor, Reading Bridge
House. George Street. Reading,
RG1 8LS

United Kingdom

4th Tloor, Reading  Bridge
House, George Street. Reading,
RG1 BLS

United Kingdom

200 Bishopsgate,  Loendon
1 C2M 1N
Uited Kingdom

Bolagsrae Sundsvall AB, Bon
270, 83t 04 Sundsvall
Stickholm

Sweden

da rue Henn MO Schoadu
[L-2534) Ciasperich.
[uxembourg

1 George Street. #14-05 One

George  Street.  Singapore
(049145)
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FIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Subsidiaries exempt from audit

The following subsidiary underakings are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to
the audit of tfinancial statements under section 479A {section 479A(2)(d)).

Each member of the subsidiary undertakings has consenated to an audit exemption in respect of the Dnancial year
given below.

The parent guarantees all owtstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary undertaking is subject to at the end of
the financial year to which the guarantee relates.

For financial vear ending 31/03/2022

OMP (GP) Limited - SC344834

UK (OM) (LP1) (GP) Limited - 06605589

UK OMP (LP2) (GP) Limited - 06605594

UK OM (LP3) (GP) Limited - 06605608

For financial year ending 30/09/2022

CLOF 11 {GP) Limited - SC376961

For financial year ending 31/12/2022

Cican Energy Partners CEP2(H 2 Limited - 08224625

Clean Lnergy Partners CLT Services Lid - 08209483

Page 57



DocuSign Envelope ID° 4CD3E71B-54F 5-47A2-931A-ABSICIBDE49S

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The following subsidiary undertakings are dormant and entitled 10 exemption from audit under section 480 of
the Companies Act 2006,

Each member of the subsidiary undertakings has not required the subsidiary to obtain an audit of its individual
financial statements in accordance with section 476 of the Companies Aet 2006,

Furthermore, these subsidiary undertakings are exempt fiom the requirements of the Companics Acl 2006
relating to the preparatior and filling of individual financial statements under section 394A and 448A

respectively.

The Paren| guarantees afl outstanding linbititics to which the subsidiary undertaking is subject 1 at the end of
the Mnancial year to which the guarantee relates.

For financial year ending 31/12/2021
Matador LP General Partner Limited - SC286874
Nuveen Corporate Secreianal Services Limited - 08938611

Nuveen Operalions Limited - 09084229

For financial year ending 31/03/2022
UK OM (1.P1) Limited - 066033586
UK OM (1 P2) Limited - 06605579

UK OM (1.P3} Limited - 06605583

Company

Subsidiaries £ 000
Cost:

AL T Japuany 2021 202163
Additions - acquistion of Glennmoni 107.425
AL 3 December 2021 309.588
Net Book Value

At 31 December 2021 R 3__09.58-8::
At 31 December 2020 _202,1@__1‘

O 9 March 2021 the Group acquired 99%q of the issucd sharc capital of Clean I-nergy Partners lioldeo | LP and
i~ afBliated entitics thereol (colleatively, "Glennmont™).

e Group made an initial cash payment of GBP 72.899.000 ( LUR 84.879.000). 1 iaed delerred consideration
lotatied GBI 31,953,000 ( EUR 37.300,000) and the earn out consideration which meets the definition of
consideration (ot the business, payable in three years il revenne retention and growth targets are achieved For a
breakdown of consideration, including details of the significunt estimate suwrrounding the continpent
constderation, please refer 10 note 19 10 the consclidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Management tests investments held for impairment annually. An impairment is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income immediately when the camrying value of the investment is greater than the enterprise
value. The enterprise value is determined by multiplying eamings before interest, taxation, depreciation and
amortisation by 8.6, plus the net assets. The Group takes the approach that so lung as the principal activity of the
Company has not changed, the carrying value transfers to other similar investments held on the Statement of
Financial Position as long as the other similar investments” enterprise vilue supports the transfer and the transfer
does not take any individual invesunent's carrying value above its cost, At 31 December 2021 it has been
determined that the carrying value of each invesiment is less than the cnterprise value and therefore no
impairment is required,
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Group associntes
Details of the Group associates as at 31 December 2021 are as fotlows:

Froportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

held
Name of associate Principal activity Registered office 2021 2020
Nuveen Immobilicn Investmest management Germany (a 50% 7 50%

GmbH (formally Gl company
Immobilicn Gmbl 1)

Interests in associates are measured using the cquity method.

On 31 December 2021 Nuveen Immobilien Genbli was sold and all Direelors’ responsiblities transferred to the
liguidator.

The lollowing table shows the assets, babilitics and equity of the associated entilies at the reporling date. Al
assoctated entities have the saume reporting date.

Movemenl on inteiests in associates can be sununarised as follows:

2021 2020
£060 £000
Gpening halance 70 132
Investmenl in associaied entity - 1
Stawre of loss for the ycar - (6}
Disposals 7% (48)
6 79
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19 Business combination

Acquisition of Clean Energy Partners Hoidco LLP

On 9 March 2021 the Group acquired 99% of the issued share capital of Clean Energy Partners Holdeo LLP and
its affitiated entities thereof (collectively, "Glennmom") to increase its clean energy infrastructure platform.
TIAA Imernatiopal Holdings | Limited, another group entity acquired the additional 1% holding of Glennmont
and the non-controlling interest will he remeasured at each reporting period. TEH 2°s parent, Nuveen Real Estate
Giohal LLC funded additional capital during the year with the sole intention for the acquisition of the
Glennmant.

The Group madés an initial cash payment of £72,899,000 (€84,879,000) and additional fixed and varjable
deferred earn out consideration’s totalling £31,953,000 (£37,300,000). These deferred considerations meet the
definition of eonsideration for the business and are payable in three vears if revenue retention and growth targets
are achieved. The earn out consideration is currently estimated to be £23,044,000 (€26,900,000), contingent an
future fund performance. The fixed deferred consideration is valued at £8,909,000 {€10,733,000) as at 31
December 2021.

At the time of the acquisition, the Group agreed to make these future payments to the partners of Glennmont
contingent on their continuing employment and future fund performance, payable in 3 years, Deferred payments
linked ta the continuing employment of the sellers will be recognised through the Conselidated Statement of
Profit or Loss over the period of the earn out.

The 100% consideration for the acquisition is slated below:

£
£000

Cash paid 72713
Fixed deferred consideration at acquisilion date 8.909
Variable earn out consideration at Tair value 23,044
Total purchase consideration 104,606
Less:
Cash acquired ’ (31342
Trade receivables (1048}
Right-of-use asset (1622
Accrued expenses P 827
Deferred income 1.166
Orther assets/habifities recognised in complelion Statement of Financial Position 1,988

(9.631)
Goodwill recogmised N 17.833
Additional amount attribuiable 0 goodwill 2616
Total goodwill 50449
Amount attributable to non-controlling interest at acquisition 03
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Goodwill of £50,449,000 was recognised as part of the acquisition, which results from Nuveen's desire to invest
and prow the infrastructure platform. There were minimal cost 5y nergies expected from combining the support
function operations of Glennmont with the Group’s operations.

The addivonal amount attributable to Goodwill relates to additional pavments determined in the SPA agreement.
T o ensure accuracy of the intanpible assels, management assessed the significant inputs to the valuation models
and chalienged these assumptions by:

+  Companng AUM performance;

«  Considering the launch of future funds;

»  Considering client altritton rate; and

+  Comparing net inflows/outilows

Non-contralling intercst al gcquisition is measured at the non-controfling interest's proportionate share of the
acquired entily’s net idenlifiahle assets. See note 2 for further information regarding TIF2's business
combination accounting policy

Glennmont contributed to income and profit aficr tux of £23,000 (€27.000) from the acquisition date. IF the
acyuisition occurred on 1 January 2021, the total expense and loss alter lax atiributabie 1o the Glennmont group
for the year aded 31 December 2021 amounlted to £5 800 (£6,000).

I here swere no acguisitions during the year encded 3 | Decembaer 2020,

20 Other investments

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
£000 £000
Jivignoted
Deht seemities 757 655
757 635

e investment in debl securitics classified for sale relates o investimenis in Asia Pacific Cities Tund - £718,000
(2020. £640,0000), Glenmmoent - £26.000 (2024 £Nil}, LOOP 1V - £7,000 (2020-£7.000) and China Qutlet Mall
fund - £6.000 (2020: £8.000).

I hese investments are Laur valued with cost deemed 1o be the best estimate of fair value as at the Swatement of
Linancial Position date, are included in fair value category level 3, and are denaminated in the following
CLrFeneIes:

31 December 31 Becember

2021 2020

£000 £000
Australran Dollars 640 583
United States Dollars 17 72
757 653

The table below shows (he movement in other invesiments during the year,
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Opening balance

Additions

Disposals

Net fair value movemnents through profit or loss
Translations
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£000 £000
655 760
57 8
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21 Teade and other receivables

Group Company

31 Decembher 31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2021 2020

£000 £ 000 £000 £400

Cureent

Trade receivables 10,687 19,968 - -
Amounts owed by related partics 3.683 1,454 1228 75
Accrued income 52.077 26,054 429 -
Prepayments 587 598 - -
Other receivables 3,032 788 - -
70,066 48,862 1657 e 78

The Tair value of those tade and other receivables clissificd as financial assels held at amortised cost are
disclosed in the financial instruments note.

Al non-curremt recervabies are doe within 10 years of the reporing daic.

The Group's enposute to vredit mad market risks, including impainmeants and allowances tor credn losses,

relating to trade and vlhor receivables is disclosed in the financial risk management and impairment note

the amounts owed by Groap underiakings are unseeurcd, interest free. have no fined date of repay ments and are
pay able on demand.

22 Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax iy recogmsed in respect of the emporary timing ditference between depreciation charged in the
financial statements and the capital allowances claimed in the United Kingdom and cmployer pension
cowdribulions, short tenn emporary differsness and tan losses canied forward. Movedents i delerred tnation
arc alt chacped thrangh the Statement of Profit or Loss,

Group - Deferred tax

31 December 31 December
2021 2010
£400 £ 000
Proviston af start of year - 277
Deferred tan expensed w1 the Consolidated Staxement of Profit or Los B ihoesy 1270
Provision at end ol yeur (1,063) S,

he deferred tax bability of £1.065.000 (2020 Loil) has arfwen as a resull of the origination of temporary
differences in relation to iy losses carried (orward to the extent that the realisation of the related 4o benefi
through futere 1axable profits is probable.
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23 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Cash al bank 53,398 98,501 1,189 675
24 Calied up share capital
Group and company
Authorised
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
No. £ No. £
Ordinary shares of £1 each 500 oy 600 600
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
No. £ No, £
Issued, catled up and fully paid share
capual ol £1 cach 500 500 500 300
Issued. cabled up and unpaid share
capital of £1 each 110 100 10 G
600 GO9 600 600
25 Share I'remium
Share premium
Group and eompany
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
£ £
Shure preinium account 202,163 _ 202,163
202,163 202163
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26 Parent and uvltimate parent undertaking

The company's immediate parent is Nuveen Real Estate Global LLE. These financial statements are available
upon request from:

730 Third Avenue

New York

MNY 10017

The uitimate controHing party is Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association.

Relationship between entity and parents
The parent of the largest group in which these financial statements are consolidated is Teachers Insurance and
Annuity Association, incorporated in United States,

The address of Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association is:
730 Third Avenue

New York

NY 10017

The parent of the smaliest group in which these financial statements are conselidated is {11 Real Cstate Global,
LLC, incorporated in United States

The address of [ Real Latate Global, LLC 1s:
730 Third Avenue

New York

NY 100E7

27 Non-controlling inferests

Set out helow is smmarised financial informaton ior cach subsidiary that ha~ non-conttolling interests that are
material to the Gaoup. 1he amounts disclosed for cach subsidiuny are before inter-company chinunations,

Nuveen Real Estate Limited

2021 2020
£ 000 £ 000
Non-current as-cis 210,244 210,184
Current assels 459 17.300
210,743 227484
Current liahidilies i 4
Nel asscis L 2Merer 227,480
Profit belore tos ]Kf_ ____,____?_‘391_
Accumulated non- onirolling interest 3o 492

Movements in pon-controlling interests during the year can be summarised as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Opening balance

Non-controliing share of comprehensive profit for the year

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests during the year

Closing balance

18 Trade and other payables

Curremt

Accrued expenses

Other payables

Amounts due lo related parties

Nown-current
Accruals and deferred income
Deterred consideration

202t pL\ 1]
£0060 £000
41D {324)
39 113
(271) -
{643) (411)
Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Deceinber
2021 2020 2621 2020
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
58,006 42,108 1G4 203
2,898 2.835 - -
- - 1,837 -
60.904 44,943 1,941 203
636 15 - -
43,293 10,970 31,277 -
43,949 10,983 31,277 -

Deferred consideration includes £31,277.000 relating to THH 2's purchase of Glennmont. The remaining portion
relates o the Group's employee long term performance plan

The fair value of the trade and other payables classified as financial instruments are disclosed in the financial

instruments note.

The Group's expesure to mazket and ligquidity risks, including maturity analysis, related o trade and other

pavables is disclosed in the financial risk management and impaiment note.

Amounts owed (o related partics are unsecured. interest free, huve no fixed date of repayment and are payable

on demand.

29 Provisions

Group

Al 1 January 2021
Additional provisions

At 31 December 2021

Current liahilities
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Company

2021

£ 000
Additions - provision for Glennmunt Partners ¥ loss allocation 470
At 31 December 2021 470
Current liabilitics . 470

A provision has been raised during the year for £470,000 w relation to an amount thal was due to be seltled to
related parties as part of the consideration for the Glennmont acquisition  Fhe Company has determined that it is
probable il is stili due 1o be paid.

30 Reiated party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiarics, whieh arc related parties of the Company,
have been eliminated on consolidation and are nol disclosed in the Group sections of this note. All trading
balances do not bear imerest and have no fised term for repayment. Non-current balances do not incur interest
and repayment will lake place once the associnted entity starts fo mahe sullicient operating profit to facililate
this. #s such it is nol passible to predict when repayment will occur,

The following amounts were payable at year e,

31 December 31 December
2021 20240
£000 £000
Amounts receivable fromApayablie te) other related parties:
Nuveen Alternative Advisors 1 EC 21 882 9.10v
Feachers Insulance and Annuity Asseciaiion 3,354 732
HIAA Internations! Holdings 1 Limited 989 276G
Gresham investment Management Londan L LC 159 136
Nuvcen Hong Kong Limited 22 43
Nuveen Japan Liniited 420 26
Westchester 82 -
Muveen UK Limited . 24
Nuoveen Altermnative Advisors LT ¢ (9} (7
Nuveen Japan Co Limited {763) (343)
Nuveen Hong Kong timited (1.018) {961)
25906 8,855

The amounts outstarding ure unsecured. carry no interest and will be seitled in cash No guarantees have been
given or received No provisions have been made for doubtlul debts in respect of the amounts owed by related
partics.
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31 Commitiments

Group

ther than the commitments under feases disclosed in note 16 and deferred eonsideration in note 19, the Group
and Company have no further commitments.

32 Leases

Group
Non-cancellable operating leases

The Group leases various offices, vehicles and printers under non-cancelflable operating leases expiring within
six montlis to eight years. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and rencwat rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are rencgotiated

From 1 January 2019, the group has recogmised right-oi-use assels for these leases, except for short term and
fow-value lea~es. See note 16 for further information.

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

£ 000 £008
Not [aler than one year 132 125
Later than enc year but not more than five years 16 §2
148 207

33 Events after the reporting period

No events occurred aiter the Statement of Financial Position date that have a material impact on the (inancia)l
stements. The Drrectors have not received any Turther information as at the appros af date which has not been
reflected in the financial statements presented.
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Historical Cost Basis U.S. GAAP (unaudited)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and Company are prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
iternational accounting standards which differs in cerlain respects from accounling principles penerally
accepted in the United States of America ("US GAADP™). The unaudited tables below summarise the resulis
under UK-adopted international accounting standards and the historical cost basis of accounting of US GAAP
for year ended 31 December 2021.

UK-adopted interpational

necgunting standards U.5. GAAP

2021 2020 2021 2020

£ 000 £ 000 £000 £000
Non-current assels 244,602 157,643 244,602 157,643
Current assels 164,033 149,048 164,083 149,048
Tatal assels 408,655 306,691 408,655 306,691
Non-current liabilities 59.936 29,004 59916 29,004
Current liabilities 61,468 50,510 64,468 50,510
Total Habilitics 124404 79,514 124,404 79314
Net assets 284251 227177 284,251 . 2_2_‘{,_1 77
Profit befure tax o8 3367 7038 3,367
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